
 
4110 Rio Bravo, Suite 201 
El Paso, Texas 79902 
tel: 915 544 2340 
fax: 915 544 1345 

  Addendum No. 1 

October 14, 2009 
 
 
Thomas Klempel, P.E. 
Environmental Engineering Services Manager 
5285 E. Williams Circle, Suite 2000 
Tucson, AZ 85711 
 
 
Subject: Addendum No. 1 to ASARCO El Paso Construction Report for Category I 

Landfills 1, 2, 3 and Category II Capping: Surface Paving of Landfills 1 and 2 
 

Dear Mr. Klempel: 

At the direction of ASARCO LLC, Camp Dresser and McKee Inc. (CDM) has prepared this 
letter report, which will serve to document the paving of the surfaces of Landfills 1 and 2 with 
hot mix asphaltic concrete (HMAC) at the El Paso Copper Smelter Facility in June of 2009. The 
construction of Landfills 1 and 2, completed in 2006 and 2007, respectively, resulted from the 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Agreed Order Docket No. 96-0212-
MLM-E, and was documented in the June 2009 report: ASARCO El Paso Construction Report 
for Category I Landfills 1, 2, 3 and Category II Capping. This letter report is an addendum to 
the aforementioned construction report.  

Background 
Construction of Landfill Cell 1 was completed on November 20, 2006, and Construction of 
Landfill Cell 2 was completed on December 5, 2007, as described in the ASARCO El Paso 
Construction Report for Category I Landfills 1, 2, 3 and Category II Capping.  Both landfills 
had a top layer consisting of 2 feet of intermediate cover, an unreinforced geosynthetic clay 
liner, a 40 mil smooth very flexible polyethylene layer, a single sided geocomposite drainage 
layer, and a 17-inch soil erosion layer. As-built drawings of the final cover extents and 
elevations were done at the time of completion, and are attached to this report (Attachment 
A). 
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In a meeting between ASARCO and the TCEQ on April 14, 2009, action items were identified 
that included installing an additional erosion protection cover on Cells 1 and 2. In a letter to 
the TCEQ on May 14, 2009, ASARCO proposed paving the two landfill surfaces with 1.5 
inches of HMAC and submitted the proposed mix design. Approval to proceed with the 
proposed actions was received on May 21, 2009 in an e-mail from the TCEQ to ASARCO. This 
correspondence, and the HMAC mix design that was proposed, are included as Attachment 
B.    

Scope of Work 
The scope of work for paving activities was proposed by the General Contractor, Dieter & 
James Incorporated, at ASARCO’s request, in two letters dated May 14 and May 26, 2009, 
included in this report as Attachment C.  

The first letter describes the scope for rework of the subgrade of a portion of Cell 1 over an 
area of 6,222 square yards to prepare it for paving, including breaking the surface with a 
sheep’s foot roller, processing with a motor grader, and applying 100 tons of crusher fines.  

The second letter describes the scope of the paving on Cells 1 and 2, including saw cuts of 
existing paving, compaction of the subgrade, spray emulsion, installation of 1.5 inches of 
HMAC over an area of approximately 18,000 square yards, and paint striping the perimeters 
of the areas. It should be noted that the spray emulsion in the scope of work was not actually 
included in the final work product. Compaction of the subgrade only took place to the extent 
that it would not damage the existing geosynthetic, polyethylene, or geocomposite layers, and 
can better be described as a rolling to smooth the surface. 

Work Execution and Field Quality Control 
The paving was done in June 2009. CQC Testing and Engineering, LLC, took two samples of 
the Type “C” HMAC material for sieve analyses, Marshall stability, and flow tests. The 
analyses showed that the samples were within the mix design range that was approved by the 
TCEQ in their May 21, 2009 correspondence. Photo documentation shows that the thickness 
of the HMAC layer was measured in the field to be at least 1.5 inches. Documentation of 
quality control testing is included in Attachment D. Construction photographs are included in 
Attachment E. 
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We are submitting one hard copy and one electronic copy, on compact disk, of this report. 

Please do not hesitate to contact Sarah Guemez at 915-544-2340 or Randy Huffsmith at 406-
441-1400 with questions about this document. 

Very truly yours,     Very truly yours,   
Sarah Guemez, P.E. Randal Huffsmith, P.E. 
 
 
 
Project Manager     Program Manager 
Camp Dresser and McKee Inc.   Camp Dresser and McKee Inc. 
 

cc: Walter Boyle of ASARCO, LLC 
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Attachment A 

Cell 1 and 2 As-Built Drawings Prior to Surface 
Paving 









 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment B 

Correspondence 









 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment C 

Scope of Work 







 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment D 

Field Quality Control 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment E 

Construction Photos 




















